
 

 
 

AGENDA 
CLEARWATER FIRE COMMISSION MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2023 
 

 
1. Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. at Clearwater City Hall 

 
2. Approve Minutes from January 31, 2022 Meeting 

 
3. Review Annual Report 

 
4. Discuss 2024 Budget Draft 

 
5. Consider Hydrant Request from Lynden Township 

 
6. Other Business 

 
7. Adjournment 



 

CLEARWATER FIRE COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

JANUARY 31, 2022 
 
 

1. Call to Order:  5:30 p.m. – Clearwater City Hall 
Chair Kris Crandall called the Clearwater Fire Commission to order Monday, January 31, 2022 at 
5:30 p.m. at Clearwater City Hall.  Members present were Kris Crandall, City of Clearwater, and 
Tom Plaggerman, Lynden Township.  Scott Miller, Clearwater Township, was absent.  A quorum 
was present.  Also present was Fire Chief Mike Keller, City Administrator Annita Smythe, and Rose 
Thelen (via Zoom) from Clearwater Township. 

 
2. Introduce New Fire Chief Mike Keller 

Introduction of new Fire Chief Mike Keller was conducted.  Former Chief Pridgeon retired 
December 31, 2021. 
 

3. Approve Minutes from June 8, 2021 Meeting 
MOTION by Plaggerman to approve the minutes as presented, seconded by Crandall, all voted 
aye.  MOTION CARRIED 2-0. 

 
4. Review Annual Report 

Chief Keller reviewed the annual report.  He noted calls in 2021 were a record total and that 
there were already over 40 calls for the month of January 2022.  Member Plaggerman had a 
question about training hours.  Keller noted that the training hours shown in the report are for 
regularly scheduled department training meetings.  Specialized position training is completed by 
department members on a volunteer basis, though the class fees are paid by the department.  
These class hours could exceed 100 hours for a single member.  Smythe noted that the budget in 
the annual report is the final approved 2022 budget. 

 
5. Discuss 2023 Budget Draft 

Smythe explained that this is a preliminary budget.  It is intended to provide a basis for the 
townships’ annual meetings in March.  Some factors that could change would be staffing levels, 
number of calls, and changes to the economy, for example, cost rises due to inflation.  Smythe 
also noted that the 2021 audit is expected to be completed the end of March and approved by 
the City Council in April. 

 
6. Fire Department Recruitment Efforts 

Members discussed shortages being felt nationwide in recruiting new fire department members.  
Members brainstormed some recruitment ideas, some of which have already been implemented 
by the city.  Ideas proposed: 

- Door-to-door direct recruitment 
- Word of mouth 
- Facebook or other social media 
- Recruitment brochure, highlighting department and outlining the time commitment 
- Flexibility with call responses/expand membership region/area 
- Open house/Heritage Days 
- Check into recruitment options with other fire organizations, state, federal 

2



 

- Place information in township newsletters 
- Banners/signage/newspaper 
- Produce short 20-second recruitment video 

o Keller will check to see if any fire organizations already have a video 
o Plaggerman will see if his daughter is interested in assisting (she recently did 

one for a project) 
o Plaggerman suggested reaching out to local schools 
o Smythe suggested using cell phone video clips and splicing together 
o Crandall stated he could splice together video clips.  He also suggested getting 

a quote from a marketing firm to produce a short video. 
 

7. Other Business 
- Members asked if the new Fire Chief plans to attend the townships’ annual meetings.  Keller 

replied that he will attend and asked for dates.  Lynden meets March 8, 2022 and Clearwater 
meets March 9, 2022. 

- Smythe stated that another Fire Commission meeting held in early summer would make sense 
to review final 2021 numbers and update where things stand with the 2023 budget proposal. 

 
8. Adjournment 

  MOTION to adjourn by Plaggerman, seconded by Crandall, all voted aye. 
  Meeting adjourned at 6:08 p.m. 
 

 
ATTEST         
 
___________________________________    
Annita M. Smythe, City Administrator    

3



Fire Chief Mike Keller
Assistant Fire Chief John Schmidt
Secretary Brandon Hanebuth
Fire Marshal Brandon Hanebuth
Captain Jim Repke
Lieutenant Andrew Struffert
Lieutenant Jason Lang
Lieutenant Brandon Hanebuth

2023 Fire Department Officers

4



2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
City of Clearwater 137 161 120 182 194
Clearwater Township 50 87 71 116 91
Lynden Township 65 78 69 68 88

Total Calls 252 326 260 366 373

Type of Call
Alarm 8 13 15 4 11
Medical 162 219 180 247 250
Gas Leak 4 3 1 8 11
MVA 19 30 16 48 40
Structure Fire 5 8 3 8 7
MV Fire 5 11 4 6 2
Smoke 0 0 0 1 2
Power Line Down 2 0 0 0 3
Severe Weather 5 3 1 0 1
Hazardous Condition 0 2 3 9 5
Service Call 4 2 2 1 5
Brush Fire 2 2 4 3 0
Grass Fire 1 5 7 8 1
Electrical Fire 2 2 0 1 1
Search & Rescue 0 2 2 1 1
Good Intent Call 33 24 22 21 33

Total Calls 252 326 260 366 373

Five Year Call History

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

5-Year Call History

City of Clearwater Clearwater Township Lynden Township Total Calls

5



Q1-2022 Q2-2022 Q3-2022 Q4-2022 2022
City of Clearwater 57 66 34 37 194
Clearwater Township 23 22 25 21 91
Lynden Township 29 20 17 22 88

Total Calls 109 108 76 80 373

2022 Call Detail
City of 

Clearwater
Clearwater 

Twp Lynden Twp Total
Alarm 9 1 1 11
Medical 135 67 48 250
Gas Leak 6 0 5 11
MVA 10 9 21 40
Structure Fire 6 0 1 7
MV Fire 1 1 0 2
Smoke 2 0 0 2
Power Line Down 3 0 0 3
Severe Weather 1 0 0 1
Hazardous Condition 4 0 1 5
Service Call 2 2 1 5
Brush Fire 0 0 0 0
Grass Fire 0 0 1 1
Electrical Fire 1 0 0 1
Search & Rescue 0 1 0 1
Good Intent Call 14 10 9 33

Total Calls 194 91 88 373

2022 Call History Detail by Entity

6



Member Calls Training Calls Training Calls Training Calls Training Calls Training
Alberica, Melissa 0 0 0 0 6 7 22 26 28 33
Ackley, Josh 86 18 14 7 0 0 0 0 100 25
Barker, Travis 25 11 13 6 10 14 13 16 61 47
Doble, Harvey 0 0 0 0 14 14 39 16 53 30
Eichten, Ashley 9 7 1 0 0 0 0 4 10 11
Gramsey, Kyle 58 19 31 10 22 16 42 16 153 61
Hanebuth, Brandon 77 23 54 17 27 18 52 26 210 84
Hill, Maci 0 0 0 0 4 7 20 26 24 33
Johnson, Sarah 0 0 0 0 0 0 61 26 61 26
Keller, Mike 48 20 45 17 28 18 26 23 147 78
Knobbe, Tyler 9 19 26 20 19 18 39 13 93 70
Kunkel, Brian 17 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 6
Lang, Jason 88 14 95 20 50 18 77 13 310 65
Lindberg, David 77 18 34 17 24 11 34 16 169 62
Mauer, Nick 56 17 86 20 16 14 37 26 195 77
Neubert, Josh 40 8 44 10 25 4 37 10 146 32
Olding, Larry 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 9 15 9
Pearson, Sean 10 0 9 0 0 0 4 4 23 4
Peterson, Daniel 58 23 62 20 30 14 44 26 194 83
Quamme, Adam 0 0 0 0 0 0 44 9 44 9
Repke, Jim 76 11 88 20 56 10 56 17 276 58
Rissanen, Max 0 0 0 0 4 7 4 6 8 13
Schmidt, John 35 20 48 17 17 18 21 17 121 72
Strohschein, Al 51 23 40 20 22 18 33 20 146 81
Struffert, Andy 34 11 32 13 21 14 19 20 106 58
Wandersee, Jim 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ziwicki, Scott 38 18 29 10 22 17 32 17 121 62

Total Hours 892 286 751 244 411 250 749 376 2803 1156

Total authorized members: 30
Total current active members: 22

2022 Member Hours

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 2022

7



Revenues

Account Description 2020 Actual 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2023 Budget Chg
230-42200-31010 Current Ad Valorem Taxes 145,698.03      152,145.73      142,973.07      143,700.00      0.5%
230-42200-33100 Federal Grants and Aids -                     -                     -                     -                     
230-42200-33400 State Grants and Aids 2,338.00           9,645.00           -                     -                     
230-42200-33404 Mn State Fire Relief 2% Aid -                     52,896.35         25,000.00         27,000.00         
230-42200-33405 Mn State Fire Relief Suppl Aid -                     12,386.37         5,500.00           5,700.00           
230-42200-33600 County Grants and Aids -                     -                     -                     -                     
230-42200-34956 Service Billings - Fire 8,602.08           1,345.00           -                     -                     
230-42200-34958 Fire Contracts - Lynden Twp 106,422.59      99,259.78         95,258.81         95,900.00         
230-42200-34959 Fire Contracts - Clearwater Twp 74,846.64         99,533.84         95,518.12         99,800.00         
230-42200-36200 Misc Revenues -                     -                     -                     -                     
230-42200-36210 Interest Earnings 162.49              -                     -                     30.00                 
230-42200-36230 Contributions/Donations/Grants 5,076.64           350.00              -                     -                     
230-42200-36260 Refunds and Reimbursements 1,350.00           8,537.44           -                     -                     
230-42200-39101 Sales of Fixed Assets/Equipment -                     -                     -                     -                     
230-42200-39200 Operating Transfers -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues 344,496.47   436,099.51   364,250.00   372,130.00   2.2%
Expenditures

Account 2020 Actual 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2023 Budget Chg
230-42200-100 Wages and Salaries (General) 49,423.69         57,836.46         67,600.00         68,200.00         
230-42200-101 Full Time Employee 9,073.47           795.67              1,500.00           5,800.00           
230-42200-120 Refunds & Reimbursements 1,621.20           1,541.52           1,000.00           1,000.00           
230-42200-121 PERA 679.90              115.40              100.00              400.00              
230-42200-122 FICA/Medicare 4,881.68           4,481.27           5,300.00           5,700.00           
230-42200-123 Operating Supplies 29,410.03         20,247.88         45,000.00         40,000.00         
230-42200-124 Fire Relief 23,500.00         12,500.00         12,500.00         12,500.00         
230-42200-126 Rental/Lease 162.00              -                     -                     -                     
230-42200-129 Mn State Fire Relief 2% Aid 23,011.20         52,896.35         25,000.00         27,000.00         
230-42220-130 Mn State Fire Relief Suppl Aid 5,475.40           13,386.37         5,500.00           5,700.00           
230-42200-131 Employer Paid Health 2,417.66           -                     -                     1,600.00           
230-42200-134 Employer Paid Life -                     100.00              
230-42200-135 Physicals/Drug Testing 2,820.00           1,520.00           3,000.00           3,200.00           
230-42200-152 Workers Comp Ins 4,606.11           5,020.13           6,500.00           6,500.00           
230-42200-208 Training & Instruction 5,050.18           10,534.90         12,000.00         12,400.00         
230-42200-209 Medical Training 5,327.49           4,220.28           7,500.00           7,500.00           
230-42200-212 Motor Fuels 1,329.42           3,034.52           3,500.00           4,000.00           
230-42200-305 Contracted Services 522.50              819.00              1,000.00           1,000.00           
230-42200-307 Repairs & Maintenance Charges 18,865.98         9,227.07           16,000.00         14,700.00         
230-42200-321 Communications 836.69              823.53              700.00              1,000.00           
230-42200-351 Legal Notices Publishing -                     382.50              -                     -                     
230-42200-363 Automotive Insurance 1,801.00           2,404.00           3,000.00           3,000.00           
230-42200-382 Utilities 2,208.24           2,812.76           3,000.00           6,000.00           
230-42200-433 Dues & Subscriptions 935.00              1,005.00           1,000.00           1,100.00           
230-42200-550 Capital Outlay - Vehicles -                     -                     -                     -                     
230-42200-560 Capital Outlay - Furniture & Office Equip -                     -                     -                     -                     
230-42200-598 Capital Outlay - Equipment -                     -                     -                     -                     
230-42200-599 Capital Outlay - Building -                     -                     -                     -                     
230-42200-720 Operating Transfers 76,000.00         149,030.00      50,000.00         50,000.00         
Capital Outlay Bonded Debt Payments - Principal -                     -                     85,000.00         86,000.00         
Capital Outlay Bonded Debt Payments - Interest -                     -                     8,550.00           7,730.00           

Total Expenditures 269,958.84   354,634.61   364,250.00   372,130.00   2.2%

Fire Department
2023 Final Budget

8



2023 Budget 339,430         
Operations & Debt 289,430         

Capital 50,000            

Calculation - Part I

Operations & Debt 
Service Budget 289,430            33% 112,011.90      

1/3 37,337.30        

Calculation - Part II

Budget Remainder 177,418.10      

Calls for Last 5 Years

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Clearwater City 139                 137                 161                 120                 182
Clearwater Twp 55                   50                   87                   71                   116
Lynden Twp 66                   65                   78                   69                   68

Total 260                    252                    326                    260                    366                    

Total 5 Yr Avg % Share Amount
739                    148                    50.48% 89,557.36        
379                    76                      25.89% 45,929.96        
346                    69                      23.63% 41,930.78        

1,464                293                    100.00% 177,418.10      

Calculation Part III

Clearwater
 Clearwater 

Twp Lynden Twp
Capital Budget - 1/3 50,000.00        16,666.67        16,666.67        16,666.67        

Total Cost Split
Part I Part II Part III Total Share

Clearwater 37,337.30        89,557.36        16,666.67        143,561.33      42.29%
Clearwater Twp 37,337.30        45,929.96        16,666.67        99,933.93        29.44%
Lynden Twp 37,337.30        41,930.78        16,666.67        95,934.75        28.26%

112,011.90    177,418.10    50,000.00      339,430.00    

 33% is taken off the top and split equally between the 3 entities

Total Expenditure Budget less State Pass-thru Funds

Fire Contract Split Formula - 2023 Budget

9



Revenues

Account Description 2021 Actual
2022 Actual 
(unaudited) 2022 Budget 2023 Budget

2024 
Proposed Chg

230-42200-31010 Current Ad Valorem Taxes 152,145.73   141,919.90   142,973.07   143,700.00   149,453.25   4.0%
230-42200-33100 Federal Grants and Aids -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-33400 State Grants and Aids 9,645.00       10,315.20     -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-33404 Mn State Fire Relief 2% Aid 52,896.35     29,149.72     25,000.00     27,000.00     29,000.00     
230-42200-33405 Mn State Fire Relief Suppl Aid 12,386.37     5,883.03       5,500.00       5,700.00       5,800.00       
230-42200-33600 County Grants and Aids -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-34956 Service Billings - Fire 1,345.00       3,550.00       -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-34958 Fire Contracts - Lynden Twp 99,259.78     71,415.95     95,258.81     95,900.00     98,979.66     
230-42200-34959 Fire Contracts - Clearwater Twp 99,533.84     74,362.49     95,518.12     99,800.00     104,417.09   
230-42200-36200 Misc Revenues -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-36210 Interest Earnings -                 (1,500.61)      -                 30.00             -                 
230-42200-36230 Contributions/Donations/Grants 350.00           2,950.00       -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-36260 Refunds and Reimbursements 8,537.44       957.21           -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-39101 Sales of Fixed Assets/Equipment -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-39200 Operating Transfers -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total Revenues 436,099.51   339,002.89   364,250.00   372,130.00   387,650.00   4.2%
Expenditures

Account 2021 Actual
2022 Actual 
(unaudited) 2022 Budget 2023 Budget

2024 
Proposed Chg

230-42200-100 Wages and Salaries (General) 57,836.46     66,441.98     67,600.00     68,200.00     70,000.00     
230-42200-101 Full Time Employee 795.67           -                 1,500.00       5,800.00       6,300.00       
230-42200-120 Refunds & Reimbursements 1,541.52       3,832.06       1,000.00       1,000.00       1,000.00       
230-42200-121 PERA 115.40           83.06             100.00           400.00           450.00           
230-42200-122 FICA/Medicare 4,481.27       5,082.70       5,300.00       5,700.00       5,700.00       
230-42200-123 Operating Supplies 20,247.88     26,234.55     45,000.00     40,000.00     45,000.00     
230-42200-124 Fire Relief 12,500.00     12,500.00     12,500.00     12,500.00     12,500.00     
230-42200-126 Rental/Lease -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-129 Mn State Fire Relief 2% Aid 52,896.35     29,149.72     25,000.00     27,000.00     29,000.00     
230-42220-130 Mn State Fire Relief Suppl Aid 13,386.37     5,883.03       5,500.00       5,700.00       5,800.00       
230-42200-131 Employer Paid Health -                 -                 -                 1,600.00       1,600.00       
230-42200-134 Employer Paid Life -                 -                 -                 100.00           100.00           
230-42200-135 Physicals/Drug Testing 1,520.00       1,620.00       3,000.00       3,200.00       3,000.00       
230-42200-152 Workers Comp Ins 5,020.13       7,392.67       6,500.00       6,500.00       7,500.00       
230-42200-208 Training & Instruction 10,534.90     15,986.13     12,000.00     12,400.00     14,000.00     
230-42200-209 Medical Training 4,220.28       8,272.43       7,500.00       7,500.00       8,500.00       
230-42200-212 Motor Fuels 3,034.52       4,739.90       3,500.00       4,000.00       6,000.00       
230-42200-305 Contracted Services 819.00           939.00           1,000.00       1,000.00       1,000.00       
230-42200-307 Repairs & Maintenance Charges 9,227.07       9,891.27       16,000.00     14,700.00     15,000.00     
230-42200-321 Communications 823.53           863.33           700.00           1,000.00       1,000.00       
230-42200-351 Legal Notices Publishing 382.50           -                 -                 -                 100.00           
230-42200-363 Automotive Insurance 2,404.00       2,592.00       3,000.00       3,000.00       3,000.00       
230-42200-382 Utilities 2,812.76       4,599.61       3,000.00       6,000.00       6,000.00       
230-42200-433 Dues & Subscriptions 1,005.00       755.00           1,000.00       1,100.00       1,100.00       
230-42200-550 Capital Outlay - Vehicles -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-560 Capital Outlay - Furniture & Office Equip -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-598 Capital Outlay - Equipment -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-599 Capital Outlay - Building -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
230-42200-720 Operating Transfers 149,030.00   159,845.50   50,000.00     50,000.00     50,000.00     
Capital Outlay Bonded Debt Payments - Principal -                 -                 85,000.00     86,000.00     87,000.00     
Capital Outlay Bonded Debt Payments - Interest -                 -                 8,550.00       7,730.00       7,000.00       

Total Expenditures 354,634.61   366,703.94   364,250.00   372,130.00   387,650.00   4.2%

Contract Amounts 339,430.00   352,850.00   Split
City of Clearwater 143,682.51   149,453.25   42.36%

Clearwater Township 99,812.74     104,417.09   29.59%
Lynden Township 95,934.75     98,979.66     28.05%

Fire Department - Fund 230
2024 DRAFT Budget

10



Fire Contract Split Formula - 2024 Estimate

2024 Budget Estimate 352,850        
Operations & Debt 302,850         

Capital 50,000           

Calculation - Part I

Operations & Debt 
Service Budget 302,850           33% 116,440.50      

1/3 38,813.50        This is the 1/3 amount for each entity.

Calculation - Part II

Budget Remainder 186,409.50      

Calls for Last 5 Years

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Total 5 Yr Avg % Share Amount
Clearwater 137                161                121                182 194 795                   159                   50.41% 93,973.08        
Clearwater Twp 50                   87                   70                   116 91 414                   83                     26.25% 48,936.93        
Lynden Twp 65                   78                   69                   68 88 368                   74                     23.34% 43,499.49        

Total 252                   326                   260                   366                   373                   1,577                315                   100.00% 186,409.50      

Calculation Part III

Clearwater
 Clearwater 

Twp Lynden Twp
Capital Budget - 1/3 50,000.00        16,666.67        16,666.67        16,666.67        

Total Cost Split
Part I Part II Part III Total Share

Clearwater 38,813.50        93,973.08        16,666.67        149,453.25      42.36%
Clearwater Twp 38,813.50        48,936.93        16,666.67        104,417.09      29.59%
Lynden Twp 38,813.50        43,499.49        16,666.67        98,979.66        28.05%

116,440.50   186,409.50   50,000.00     352,850.00   

 33% is taken off the top and split between the 3 entities - this is 
based on the old formula

11



From: Tom Plaggerman
To: Annita Smythe
Subject: Fire Budget
Date: Monday, January 9, 2023 10:18:36 PM

Happy New Year Anita!!
 
I hope all is going well.
 

We have our Budget Meeting coming up on January 24th and we were hoping you could give us a
best guess of what the numbers might look like for next year for the Fire Department Budget.
 
Supervisor Johnson also had asked if the Chief ever had a change to consider supporting a dry
hydrant down at the Long Lake Landing? I said  I would mention it to you.
 
I look forward to seeing everyone again at the Fire Commission Meeting and will wait for your
response.
 
Take care,
 
Tom
 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows
 

12

mailto:tom.plaggerman@lyndentownship.net
mailto:ASmythe@clearwatercity.com
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986

	2022 FD Annual Report.pdf
	Officers
	Call History
	Calls By Entity
	Members
	Budget
	Payment Split

	2024 FD Budget - DRAFT for Twps.pdf
	FD
	FD Split




